IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,

Plaintiff,

v.

Case No. 16-cv-281

DELAWARE STATE ESCHEATOR DAVID GREGOR, in his official capacity,

and

MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

The Wisconsin Department of Revenue (DOR or Wisconsin), for a complaint against the defendants, alleges:

1. This is an action by Wisconsin to recover money erroneously submitted to the Delaware State Escheator by MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. in violation of 12 U.S.C. § 2503 and Wisconsin law.

JURISDICTION & VENUE

- 2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction in this case under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because this is a civil action arising under the laws of the United States.
- 3. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Wisconsin's state law claim under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,

Plaintiff,

v.

Case No.

DELAWARE STATE ESCHEATOR DAVID GREGOR, in his official capacity,

and

MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

The Wisconsin Department of Revenue (DOR or Wisconsin), for a complaint against the defendants, alleges:

1. This is an action by Wisconsin to recover money erroneously submitted to the Delaware State Escheator by MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. in violation of 12 U.S.C. § 2503 and Wisconsin law.

JURISDICTION & VENUE

- 2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction in this case under 28 U.S.C.§ 1331 because this is a civil action arising under the laws of the United States.
- 3. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Wisconsin's state law claim under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).

4. The case is properly venued in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) because a substantial part of the omissions or events giving rise to the dispute occurred in this district. All of the funds at issue in this dispute originated in Wisconsin, and all of the money should have been submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue in Madison, Wisconsin. In addition, adjudication of this case requires the application of Wisconsin law.

PARTIES

- 5. DOR is a department of the State of Wisconsin and is the statutory repository for unclaimed and abandoned property under Wisconsin law.
- 6. Defendant Delaware State Escheator David Gregor (Gregor) is an official of the State of Delaware who is responsible under Delaware law for receiving abandoned and unclaimed property. Gregor is made a party to this action in his official capacity.
- 7. MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. (MoneyGram) is a Delaware corporation that has its principal place of business in Texas. MoneyGram is a wholly owned subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc.
- 8. All parties have sufficient contacts with this district to warrant personal jurisdiction in this district.

FACTS

A. MoneyGram Money Orders and Official Checks

- 9. MoneyGram sells money orders and instruments that it markets as "official checks."
- 10. These mediums of exchange are "instruments" within the meaning of the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in Wisconsin (Wis. Stat. § 403.104(2)), and are collectively called "instruments" in this complaint.
- 11. MoneyGram sells its instruments to the public through MoneyGram offices located in Wisconsin.
- 12. Purchasers pay MoneyGram the amount of the instrument, plus a transaction fee.
- 13. After receiving payment, MoneyGram issues the instrument to the purchaser.
 - 14. MoneyGram is directly liable for the stated amount of the instrument.
- 15. "Official check" is synonymous with "money order." There is no material commercial difference between the instruments.
- 16. MoneyGram sells money orders in traditional retail locations, such as drug stores.
- 17. MoneyGram generally sells official checks at banks and other financial institutions.
- 18. MoneyGram accepts only immediate payment when selling its instruments; it does not sell instruments on credit.

- 19. MoneyGram is directly liable to pay the amount of its instruments.
- 20. When a MoneyGram official check is sold in Wisconsin, MoneyGram is the holder of the value of the official check as a matter of Wisconsin law and is not required to pay the value of the official check until it is processed for payment by a financial institution.
- 21. If an instrument is never presented for payment, MoneyGram never releases the value of the instrument.
- 22. MoneyGram does not generally record the addresses of the purchasers of the instruments.

B. Wisconsin's Unclaimed Property Law

- 23. Wisconsin's Unclaimed Property Act (the "Act"), Wis. Stat. ch. 177, defines which property is subject to deposit in the unclaimed property fund and which is subject to the custody and control of the state through the DOR.
- 24. Wisconsin Stat. § 177.01(8) defines a "holder" as any entity that is in possession of property belonging to another, or indebted to another on an obligation.
- 25. As an issuer of the described instruments, MoneyGram is a holder for purposes of the Act.
- 26. Any sum payable on an instrument that has been outstanding more than 7 years after issuance without communication from the owner is presumed to be abandoned property. Wis. Stat. § 177.04(2).

- 27. Sums payable on abandoned instruments are subject to Wisconsin's custody if the records of the issuer show that the instrument was purchased in Wisconsin. Wis. Stat. § 177.04(4)(a).
- 28. Wisconsin Stat. § 177.17(4)(a) requires MoneyGram to report all abandoned property to the administrator of the Act.
- 29. Wisconsin Stat. § 177.17(4)(a)2. requires MoneyGram to pay or to deliver to the administrator of the Act all abandoned property that MoneyGram is required to report.
- 30. On information and belief, MoneyGram has sent to the Delaware State Escheator sums exceeding \$13,000,000 as abandoned property, that represent amounts for which MoneyGram was liable on instruments purchased in Wisconsin but never negotiated for the years 2000 and after (hereafter, the "Wisconsin Instruments").
- 31. Wisconsin Stat. § 177.17(4)(a)2. required MoneyGram to pay or deliver all of them money described in the preceding paragraph to the administrator of the Act.

C. Disposition of Abandoned Money Orders and Traveler's Check Act

- 32. A federal law, The Disposition of Abandoned Money Orders and Traveler's Checks Act (the "Federal Disposition Act"), 12 U.S.C. §§ 2501-03, applies to the facts of this case.
- 33. Under the Federal Disposition Act, if any sum is payable on a money order, traveler's check, or similar written instrument (other than a third party bank

check) on which a banking or financial organization or a business association is directly liable, the State where the money order, traveler's check, or similar written instrument was purchased holds the exclusive right to escheat or take custody of the sum payable on such instrument, to the extent of that State's power under its own laws to escheat or to take custody of such sum. 12 U.S.C. § 2503(1).

- 34. Under the Federal Disposition Act, a "business association" is defined as "any corporation (other than a public corporation), joint stock company, business trust, partnership, or any association for business purposes of two or more individuals[.]" 12 U.S.C. § 2502(2).
- 35. MoneyGram is a business association under the Federal Disposition Act.
- 36. MoneyGram's books and records show Wisconsin as the state where the Wisconsin Instruments were purchased.
 - 37. The Wisconsin Instruments are not third party bank checks.
- 38. The Wisconsin Unclaimed Property Act permits Wisconsin to take custody of the sums payable on the Wisconsin Instruments.
- 39. Under the Federal Disposition Act, Wisconsin has the exclusive right to take custody of the sums payable on the Wisconsin Instruments.
- 40. The funds at issue originated in Wisconsin and were statutorily required to be remitted to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue in Madison, Wisconsin.

- 41. Gregor instructed MoneyGram not to remit the funds to Wisconsin, and to remit the money to Delaware instead.
- 42. Gregor has not honored Wisconsin's right to custody of the sums payable on Wisconsin Instruments.

COUNT I: DECLARATORY JUDGMENT ACT, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 (AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

- 43. Wisconsin incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
- 44. There is an actual controversy between Wisconsin and the defendants regarding Wisconsin's right to custody of the sums payable on abandoned Wisconsin Instruments.
 - 45. Wisconsin seeks a declaration that:
 - a. the MoneyGram official checks constitute "similar written instruments" under the Federal Disposition Act;
 - b. in the alternative, the MoneyGram official checks are money orders under the Federal Disposition Act;
 - c. the MoneyGram official checks are not third party bank checks;
 - d. as to abandoned Wisconsin Instruments, Gregor, as the Delaware State Escheator, is violating Wisconsin's right to custody of the sums remitted to Delaware that represent the proceeds of abandoned Wisconsin Instruments;
 - e. MoneyGram's transfer to Delaware of the proceeds of abandoned Wisconsin Instruments violates both the Federal Disposition Act and the Wisconsin Unclaimed Property Act; and
 - f. all future sums payable on abandoned MoneyGram official checks that were purchased in Wisconsin shall be remitted to Wisconsin.

- 46. The interests of Wisconsin and the defendants are adverse: Wisconsin has demanded payment on the sums payable on the Wisconsin Instruments and has demanded that future sums payable on abandoned MoneyGram official checks purchased in Wisconsin be remitted to Wisconsin; the defendants have refused to comply with Wisconsin's demands.
- 47. A determination by this Court of the competing rights of Wisconsin and Delaware to abandoned MoneyGram official checks purchased in Wisconsin under the Federal Disposition Act and the Wisconsin Unclaimed Property Act will conclusively resolve the disputes between the parties.
- 48. A decision by this Court on the issues presented will render practical help to the parties, in that a decision will determine which parties are entitled to the proceeds of abandoned Wisconsin Instruments in the future.

COUNT II: VIOLATION OF THE ACT (AGAINST MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.)

- 49. Wisconsin incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
- 50. The Act required MoneyGram to report to Wisconsin all abandoned Wisconsin Instruments.
 - 51. MoneyGram failed to report as required.
- 52. Money Gram was lawfully required to remit the sums payable on the abandoned Wisconsin Instruments to the custody of the DOR.
- 53. MoneyGram has not remitted to DOR the sums payable on the abandoned Wisconsin Instruments.

- 54. The Act provides that if the holder of abandoned property fails to report or remit as required, it is subject to a forfeiture of not less than \$100/day, not to exceed \$5,000, for each day the report is not filed or the funds are not remitted. Wis. Stat. § 177.34(2).
- 55. The Act provides that if the holder of abandoned property subject to the Act fails to remit funds as required, the holder is subject to an interest charge of 18% per annum from the date the property should have been remitted. Wis. Stat. § 177.34(1).
- 56. The Act provides that if the holder of abandoned property subject to the Act fails to remit funds as required, the holder is subject to a forfeiture of 25% of the value of the property that should have been remitted. Wis. Stat. § 177.34(3).
- 57. The Wisconsin Unclaimed Property Act authorizes the Wisconsin Attorney General to pursue civil actions for the purpose of enforcing the Act. Wis. Stat. § 177.32.

COUNT III: VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL DISPOSITION ACT (AGAINST MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.)

- 58. Wisconsin incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
- 59. Under the Federal Disposition Act, Wisconsin has the exclusive right to take custody of the sums payable on the Wisconsin Instruments.
- 60. Money Gram was lawfully required under the Federal Disposition Act to remit the sums payable on the abandoned Wisconsin Instruments to the custody of the DOR.

61. MoneyGram has not remitted to DOR the sums payable on the abandoned Wisconsin Instruments.

WHEREFORE, Wisconsin requests judgment as follows:

- A. On Count I, entering judgment in favor of Wisconsin and against defendants and declaring that:
 - a. The MoneyGram official checks constitute "similar written instruments" under the Federal Disposition Act;
 - b. in the alternative, the MoneyGram official checks are money orders under the Federal Disposition Act;
 - c. the MoneyGram official checks are not third party bank checks;
 - d. as to abandoned Wisconsin Instruments, Gregor, as the Delaware

 State Escheator is violating Wisconsin's right to custody of the sums
 remitted to Delaware that represent the proceeds of abandoned
 Wisconsin Instruments:
 - e. MoneyGram's transfer to Delaware of the proceeds of abandoned Wisconsin Instruments violates both the Federal Disposition Act and the Wisconsin Unclaimed Property Act; and
 - f. all future sums payable on abandoned MoneyGram official checks that were purchased in Wisconsin shall be remitted to Wisconsin.
- B. On Count II, awarding damages in favor of Wisconsin and against MoneyGram, in an amount to be determined at trial, plus interest at 18% per annum, penalties of \$100/day (up to \$5,000) a 25% penalty on

amounts for which required remittance was not made, and attorneys' fees and costs.

- C. On Count III, awarding damages in favor of Wisconsin and against MoneyGram in an amount to be determined at trial.
- D. Granting Wisconsin such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated this 27th day of April, 2016.

BRAD D. SCHIMEL Wisconsin Attorney General

/s/F. Mark Bromley
F. MARK BROMLEY
Assistant Attorney General
State Bar #1018353

THERESA (ESA) M. ANZIVINO Assistant Attorney General State Bar #1079343

Attorneys for Plaintiff

Wisconsin Department of Justice Post Office Box 7857 Madison, Wisconsin 53707-7857 (608) 264-6201 (Bromley) (608) 266-8554 (Anzivino) (608) 267-8906 (Fax) bromleyfm@doj.state.wi.us anzivinotm@doj.state.wi.us

Case: 3:16-cv-00281-vmc_pocurett#: 11_Eiled: 04/27/16 Page 1 of 1
er sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as requireles of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Cle

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and provided by local rules of cour purpose of initiating the civil d	 This form, approved by the 	ne Judicial Conference of	f the Uni	ted States in September				
I. (a) PLAINTIFFS				DEFENDANTS				
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE				DELAWARE STATE ESCHEATOR DAVID GREGOR, in his official capacity, and MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.				
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Dane (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)				County of Residence of First Listed Defendant foreign (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.				
(c) Attorneys (Firm Name,	Address, and Telephone Numbe	r)		Attorneys (If Known)			
F. MARK BROMLEY and Assistant Attorneys Gene Post Office Box 7857, Ma	eral	ANZIVINO						
II. BASIS OF JURISDI	ICTION (Place an "X" in O	ne Box Only)	III. CI	TIZENSHIP OF I	PRINCIPAL PARTIES	(Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintiff		
1 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party)			(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant) PTF DEF Citizen of This State \square 1 \square 1 Incorporated or Principal Place \square 4 \square 4 of Business In This State					
☐ 2 U.S. Government ☐ 4 Diversity Defendant			Citize	en of Another State	☐ 2 ☐ 2 Incorporated and of Business In	•		
				en or Subject of a	□ 3 □ Soreign Nation	□ 6 □ 6		
IV. NATURE OF SUIT	Γ (Place an "X" in One Box On	aly)	1.01	ergii Country				
CONTRACT		RTS		PRFEITURE/PENALTY	BANKRUPTCY	OTHER STATUTES		
□ 110 Insurance □ 120 Marine □ 130 Miller Act □ 140 Negotiable Instrument □ 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment □ 151 Medicare Act □ 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excludes Veterans) □ 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits □ 160 Stockholders' Suits □ 190 Other Contract □ 195 Contract Product Liability □ 196 Franchise REAL PROPERTY □ 210 Land Condemnation □ 220 Foreclosure □ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment □ 240 Torts to Land □ 245 Tort Product Liability □ 290 All Other Real Property	□ 330 Federal Employers' Liability □ 340 Marine □ 345 Marine Product Liability □ 350 Motor Vehicle □ 355 Motor Vehicle □ 700 Other Personal Injury □ 362 Personal Injury - Medical Malpractice CIVIL RIGHTS □ 440 Other Civil Rights □ 441 Voting □ 442 Employment □ 443 Housing/ Accommodations □ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment □ 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - Other □ 448 Education	PERSONAL INJURY □ 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability □ 367 Health Care/ Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability □ 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability PERSONAL PROPER □ 370 Other Fraud □ 371 Truth in Lending □ 380 Other Personal Property Damage □ 385 Property Damage □ 530 Other Personal □ 530 General □ 530 General □ 530 General □ 535 Death Penalty Other: □ 540 Mandamus & Other □ 550 Civil Rights □ 555 Prison Condition □ 560 Civil Detaince - Conditions of Confinement	71	5 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 0 Other LABOR 0 Fair Labor Standards Act 0 Labor/Management Relations 0 Railway Labor Act 1 Family and Medical Leave Act 0 Other Labor Litigation 1 Employee Retirement Income Security Act IMMIGRATION 2 Naturalization Application 5 Other Immigration Actions	□ 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 □ 423 Withdrawal	□ 375 False Claims Act □ 376 Qui Tam (31 USC □ 3729(a)) □ 400 State Reapportionment □ 410 Antitrust □ 430 Banks and Banking □ 450 Commerce □ 460 Deportation □ 470 Racketeer Influenced and □ Corrupt Organizations □ 480 Consumer Credit □ 490 Cable/Sat TV □ 850 Securities/Commodities/ Exchange ▼ 890 Other Statutory Actions □ 891 Agricultural Acts □ 893 Environmental Matters □ 895 Freedom of Information Act □ 896 Arbitration □ 899 Administrative Procedure Act/Review or Appeal of Agency Decision □ 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes		
X1 Original □ 2 Re	moved from ate Court Cite the U.S. Civil State 12 U.S.C. secs, 2 Brief description of ca	Appellate Court tute under which you are 501 and 2503	Reop	(specij Do not cite jurisdictional st	ner District Litigation			
VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT: CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.				DEMAND \$ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: JURY DEMAND:				
VIII. RELATED CASI IF ANY		JUDGE			DOCKET NUMBER			
DATE 04/27/2016	SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD /S/ F. MARK BROMLEY							
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY								
RECEIPT # Al	MOUNT	APPLYING IFP		JUDGE	MAG. JU	JDGE		

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Western District of Wisconsin

WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE						
)				
Plaintiff(s))			
v.) Civil Action No. 16-cv-281)))				
DELAWARE STATE ESCHEATOR DAVID GREGOR, in his official capacity, and MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.						
Defendant(s)))			
	SUMMONS I	N A CIV	IL ACTION			
To: (Defendant's name and address	Delaware State Escheato Delaware Dept. of Finance 820 North French Street, Wilmington, DE 19801	e	•			
MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. 2828 North Harwood Street, 15th Floor Dallas, TX 75201						
A lawsuit has been fil	ed against you.					
Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff's attorney,						
whose name and address are:	F. Mark Bromley and Theresa (Esa) M. Anzivino Assistant Attorneys General Post Office Box 7857 Madison, WI 53707-7857					
If you fail to respond, You also must file your answe			against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.			
			CLERK OF COURT			
Date:						
			Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk			

AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 16-cv-281

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

was re	ceived by me on (date)	·								
	☐ I personally served	the summons on the individual	at (place)							
			on (date)							
	☐ I left the summons at the individual's residence or usual place of abode with (name)									
	, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,									
	on (date)	, and mailed a copy to	the individual's last known address; or							
	☐ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who									
	designated by law to a	accept service of process on beh	alf of (name of organization)							
			on (date)	; or						
	☐ I returned the summ	☐ I returned the summons unexecuted because								
	☐ Other (specify):									
	My fees are \$	for travel and \$	for services, for a total of \$	0.00						
	I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.									
Date:										
Dute.			Server's signature							
			Printed name and title							
			Server's address							

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc: